Special Selections
Continued from page 2

So, with only a few illustrations, it can be seen that pop-up books are an important part of the history of the book as well as playing a significant role in the development of children's literature. Therefore, when Trevor Blake decided to wind up J. Whirler Books in the summer of 1999 and made his entire bookstock available, Special Collections bought a bookstore—thanks largely to the support and foresight of Dean Lance Query and Assistant Dean for Resources Bettina Meyer. In one stroke we doubled the size of the Historic Children's Book Collection, adding, among other things, 300 19th century children's books, some 60 miniature books, and over 1,000 pop-up books to our holdings. Trevor also put us in touch with Jean Tyler, a Portland pop-up book collector, who wished to sell her collection. In that purchase, we added another 365 pop-ups with no duplications. In addition to adding numbers, these materials add subject strength to seven of our collections.

So what have we gained—outside of one of the larger collections of these special books in the Midwest? Pop-ups come in all shapes and sizes. What's in the Fridge? A Tasty Pop-up ABC (Ruth Tilden, Simon and Schuster, 1994) is shaped like and opens much like a real refrigerator, while Say Cheese! (David Pelham, Dutton Children's Books, 1998) is shaped like a wedge of cheddar. Many of these books reflect a sort of popular culture that adults perceive children want, or try to sell to them: *The Bible Beasties* (Babbette Cole and Ron van der Meer, London: Marshall Pickering, 1993); *Everyone Hide from Wobbly Pig* (Mick Inkpen, Viking, 1996); *The Transformers Pop-up Book* (Vic Dupa-Whyte, London: Beehive Books, 1998) and Bill Mayer's 1994 Hypernion Books for Children title *Golf-o-Rama: The Wacky Nine-hole Pop-up Mini-golf Book* (with née golf balls and a scorecard) are among these. The books in this collection cover a wide area of subjects: dinosaurs; Christmas books; fairy tales; magic; science fiction as well as the classic Children's Literature characters Winnie the Pooh, Dorothy, Alice, Superman, Buck Rogers, and Elvis. (Although Elvis became a fictional character only after his death and the latest supermarket "sightings.") Some books are educational like the *Halley's Comet Pop-up Book* (Patrick Moore and Heather Couper, London: Deans International, 1985) and *Heather Couper: London* (Francesca Crespi, London: Frances Lincoln, 1995); *Kubla Khan: a Pop-up Version of Coleridge's Classic* (Nick Bantock, Viking 1994); and *Wacky Nine-hole Mini-Golf Book* (Dutton, 1994).

Moreover, pop-ups are fun to show and exhibit. Watching the faces of people, during presentations as the pop-ups are cautiously opened and put through their paces is always a joy for both demonstrator and the observers. They always establish and capture their own audience. In this academic year alone, seven classes from English, Art, Graphic Arts, and Education have made nine visits to see the pop-up books. Those visits brought over 270 people to the Libraries. Sixty-eight readers have come to use the pop-ups for assignments which range from class papers to making their own pop-up books. Another fifteen have come in for reasons that involve smiles of satisfaction. And, there is no doubt, as word of the collection spreads, that audiences will only grow over time. In fact, in a world of declining library turnstile counts, Special Collections readership has continued to increase every year.

But, in the end, the simplest and most direct response to why the University Libraries should spend money on pop-up books is also obvious: the collection supports the teaching and research missions of WMU. That, as the current television vernacular has it, is our final answer. But, if you only come because they're fun, we're here for you!

Blueprints of the Past — II
By Suzanne Husband, Curator, Regional History Collections

In the fall of 1976, Isabel, the widow of WILLIAM ADDISON STONE, JR. donated a large number of his architectural drawings, blueprints, and photographs to the Regional History Collections. In 1978, additional drawings, reports and photographs were added. Most of the material is from the 1930s through the 1960s and there are approximately 300 rolls plus 10 cubic feet of manuscript materials.

William Stone, Jr. was born in 1902 to prominent Kalamazoo physicians, Dr. William A. Stone and Dr. Harriet McAlmont Stone. William Jr. graduated from the Yale University School of Architecture in 1928, and practiced with architectural firms in New York City until 1931 when he returned to Kalamazoo and opened his own office. In 1937, he took as a partner Randall Wagner. During World War II, Stone contributed to the design of a munitions factory in Dixon, Illinois. Subsequently he had partnerships with Kalamazoo architects Colbert C. Smith and James L. Parent. In 1967, he became an independent architect again.

Stone's principal works include the Westnedge Apartments (1949), the J.C. Penny Store on South Burdick Street (1955), Sarah DeWaters Hall at Kalamazoo College (1965), branch banks for the First National Bank & Trust in Kalamazoo (1966, 1967), and the Great Lakes Computer Center in Portage (1968). He designed the First Congregational Church in Kalamazoo; the Congregational Church in Cooper, Michigan; and the Church of the Good Shepherd in Allegan. He also prepared the blueprints for several schools and fire stations in the Kalamazoo area. However his major interest was in private residences and he designed several of the homes in the Orchard Hills development on Long and Short roads. In the collection are a number of unidentified exterior and interior photographs of area homes built during the 1960s.

During the period when Stone was a member of the Gull Lake Country club, he was involved in planning a new clubhouse and grounds. The collection includes a history of the clubhouses, topographical...
maps of the area, and correspondence about the project. In 1951, the Michigan Chapter of the American Institute of Architects gave Stone their Grand Award for Residences for the design of his own home at 529 Pinehurst Boulevard.

The LOUIS C. KINGSCOTT & ASSOCIATES COLLECTION is the Regional History Collections largest architectural collection, encompassing over 37 cubic feet of material. It includes blueprints, photographs, and manuscripts relating to projects primarily located in Michigan, although Kingscott & Associates was registered in Iowa, Illinois, Washington DC, Indiana, Ohio, and Wisconsin.

Louis Clifton Kingscott, Sr. was born in Bear Lake, Michigan, in 1898. He received a degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Michigan in 1922. As of 1922, he was also partner in the firm of Stewart & Kingscott, where he worked with Donald A. Stewart until 1929, when Stewart died and Kingscott became an independent architect. The firm was then known as Louis C. Kingscott & Associates.

From 1940-45, Kingscott Sr. served as chairman of the Michigan International Bridge Authority, which studied plans for the eventual construction of the Sault Ste. Marie Bridge linking the U.S. and Canada. Some of his principal works include the old Kalamazoo Public Library & Museum, a number of buildings on the west campus at Western Michigan University as well as buildings at the University of Michigan, Ann Arbor. He died in November 1962.

Louis C. Kingscott, Jr. was born in Kalamazoo in 1928. He graduated from the University of Michigan in 1953, worked for an engineering firm in Morocco, North Africa, and then joined his father's firm. He was elected president of Louis C. Kingscott & Associates, Inc. after his father's death. In 1972, Louis Jr. sold the firm and retired a year later. Some of his principal works include Kohrman Hall, the industrial and engineering technology building at Western (1965); dormitories at Northern Michigan University (1966); Union High School in Grand Rapids (1967); and Fenton Public School (1969). He died in November 1994 in Battle Creek.

The Kingscott architectural materials arrived in the Regional History Collections in several stages. The first acquisition was in 1980, the second in 1983, and a third deposit came in 1988. Because of space and time limitations, the curator, then Phyllis Burnham, established criteria to select from the vast amount of materials offered. The majority of the Kingscott materials cover the city of Kalamazoo. Second, anything related to southwestern Michigan was chosen, and, finally, materials related to Michigan in general were selected. In addition, several out-of-state projects were chosen due to their unique nature. In 1989, more plans were added to the Kingscott collection. These were primarily buildings at Western Michigan University designed and or renovated by Kingscott. The Kingscott blueprints for the Kalamazoo public school buildings are housed in East Hall, but the majority of the Kingscott collection is in off site storage, where it can be retrieved by staff upon request.

Because of its historical coverage and size, the Kingscott & Associates Collection contains blueprints and photographs for all of the following building categories: commercial and industrial; religious; educational; recreational; health facilities; penal institutions; public buildings; military structures; and transportation, communications, and scientific structures.

An inventory of the earlier drawings received in 1980 was provided by Kingscott, but later acquisitions do not have an inventory or a finding aid, which makes access more time consuming, but not impossible. While the Regional History Collections does not have the entire run of the Kingscott architectural materials from 1935 through late 1980, there are enough blueprints, photographs, negatives, and correspondence to make this the largest and most significant collection of architectural design in the Regional History Collections.

While preparing this article, two additional collections came to my attention as key research resources found in WMU's architectural databank. First, our "blueprints of the past" would not be complete without mentioning the very first set of drawings that the Regional History Collections received. They are not by a local architect, but are of an important landmark on Kalamazoo's historic landscape. In 1878, the LADIES LIBRARY ASSOCIATION in Kalamazoo built the first structure erected by a women's library group in the area. A pair of hand colored ink on linen drawings is not only beautiful to look at, but extremely practical as well. The blueprints were invaluable in the 1975 and 1991 restorations to the century old building when copies were made for the consulting architects. The unique building, still maintained and used by the Ladies Library Association as well as for many special cultural events, is on the National Register of Historic Places.

The last set of blueprints brings us full circle to the windows of East Hall and the campus itself. Numerous architectural drawings are available for buildings and landscaping located on WMU's campus. The most famous are the Olmsted brothers drawings for landscaping the East Campus, or Prospect Hill, as it is called on the 1904 drawings. Additional world renowned landscaping designed by Frederick Law Olmsted, and later his sons, includes the original landscaping of Central Park in New York City, Belle Isle Park in Detroit, the grounds of the 1893 Colombian World's Fair, and the grounds at the Biltmore Estate in North Carolina.

The original Prospect Hill plans submitted to the State Board of Education proved to be too costly, and were modified. There are 11 sheets of drawings, showing the exact location of proposed plantings. A botanical list is included on one of the sheets and a copy is also found in the Papers of Dwight B. Waldo. Nothing physical remains today of the modified plan but, as the University plans for WMU's Centennial in 2003, these drawings have been of considerable interest to our own landscape staff as well as those interested in the history, preservation, and restoration of the East Campus.

Also found in the University Archives, not the Regional History Collections, are select older architectural drawings of East Hall and some buildings of the West Campus such as Wood Hall. The Archives material has not been cataloged and is not generally open to the public. This is also true of a large collection of the more contemporary blueprints of the University's buildings held by the Planning Department of Campus Facilities. Regardless, the University and the Regional History Collections are preserving a significant portion of the architectural record of the University. Indeed, as with all of our "blueprints of the past," future researchers will be able to see through the eyes of creative, imaginative designers who established, through their design, the solid and enduring structures that define our living space.